
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
QLife Regular Board Meeting 

 
Thursday, February 23, 2017 

Noon 
Wasco County Courthouse 
Deschutes Room – BO8 

 
 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

2. Approval of January 26, 2016 Board Minutes 

3. Financial Reports – Kate Mast 

4. Budget Amendment Resolution 17-001 – Kate Mast 

5. Financial Priorities – Budget Year 2017-18 –  Kate Mast 

4. Appoint a Budget Officer – Board 

6. Reports –  John Amery 

7. Discussion – QLife Consultant – Tyler Stone 

8. Maupin Project Update - Erik Orton and Dan McNeely 

9. Executive Session: (2)(g) Competitive trade or commerce negotiations and (2)(m)(E) Discuss information 

regarding security of telecom systems and data transmission. 

10. Old/New Business  
 

11. Next Meeting Dates: Regular Board Meeting – to be deteremined 
 
12.  Adjourn 
 
*Agenda subject to change 
 

An executive session may, in the discretion of the presiding officer, be called based on one or more of the following: 
ORS 192.660 (2)(a) Consider employment issues; (2)(e) Real property’ (2)(f) Consider exempt records or 
information; (2)(g) Competitive trade or commerce negotiations; (2)(h) Consult with counsel re litigation; (2)(m)(D) & 
(E) Discuss information regarding security of telecom systems and data transmission. 



  

Approval of January 26, 2017 Minutes 
 

• January 26, 2017 Minutes 

 



 

MINUTES 

Q-Life Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, January 26th, 2016 

Noon 
Deschutes Room, Wasco County Courthouse 

 
Call to Order: President Erick Larson calls the meeting to order.  

Roll Call: Erick Larson, Darcy Long-Curtiss, Taner Elliott, Tyler Stone, John Amery, Kate Mast, Keith Mobley, Erik Orton  
Tawny Cramer 

Approval of November 22, 2016 Board Minutes: Taner Elliott makes a motion to approve minutes as written, Erick 
Larson seconds.  

Financials: Kate Mast explains that QLife administration needs to move forward in the process of transitioning the 
financials to Wasco County and out of the City of The Dalles, also this will be happening during the budget process and 
her retirement. Two Board members will need to be appointed to assist in the development of the budget.  

Kate explains she will need approximately two months to work with the Wasco County Finance Director, Mike 
Middleton. Kate requests written consent from Tyler Stone to start working with Mike. It was agreed that after the 
meeting a written consent would be sent via email.  

An official motion to transition QLife financial responsibility to Wasco County staff and away from the City of The Dalles 
is made by Taner Elliott, Darcy Long-Curtiss seconds.  

The Board discusses and agrees that Scott Hege and Erick Larson would both be well suited to assist in the budget 
process as needed and required by Kate and Mike. Erick Larson makes a motion the appointments, Taner seconds the 
motion. 

Kate also explains to the Board they will need to appoint a Budget Committee member to replace Ken Leibham.  

The Board and Kate discuss the need to update the Board members that are authorized to sign checks. Dan Spatz, 
former Board member, was authorized to sign checks and his appointment will need to be replaced. Kate explains 
whoever the Board appoints will need to go to the bank to finalize the authorization.  The Board appoints Tyler Stone as 
the additional authorized signer, Taner moves to approve, Erick seconds the motion.   

Maupin Project Update including Cost Overruns: Erik Orton explains to the Board that the Maupin project is on 
schedule and Commstructure will be coordinating with Tawny Cramer to advertise the bid. 

However, considering the additional time spent negotiating with WEC regarding pole make-ready costs and negotiating 
easements needed for construction the original work order needs to amended. The original work order of $100,000 
needs to be increased to $150,000.   

Erick makes a motion to approve the amendment, Taner seconds.  

http://www.qlife.net/


QLife Consultant Interviews: Interviews were held for potential QLife consultants. Adam Haas, Nancy Jesule and Sue 
Diciple and Joseph Franell were all interviewed. Each consultant was given 20 minutes to present their proposal to the 
QLife Board. Joanne Hovis was unable to attend her scheduled interview and the Board agreed to reschedule for a later 
date.  

Tawny Cramer explains the minutes for December 22nd need to be approved, noting no meeting was held and the 
minutes reflect only that. Taner moves to approve minutes as written, Erick seconds the motion.  

Amendment No. 2 of Commstructure QLife Agreement: Erik Orton explains the new agreement is an update to the 
Commstructure/QLife Professional Services Agreement and includes an updated pricing structure. Taner moves to 
approve the new agreement, Erick seconds the motion.  

Tyler with the assistance of John Amery and Erik Orton, explains to the Board that a section of damaged fiber has been 
discovered near St. Mary’s. It is believed that the extreme weather conditions may be to blame for the failure of the 
fiber. Erik is in contact with the fiber manufactures to help investigate. Tyler will contact Wasco County Emergency 
Management and QLife’s insurance carrier to research options for assistance in repair. Cost estimates have been 
compiled and are substantial and the Board will need to approve proceeding with repair. Erick moves to approve repair, 
Taner seconds the motion.  

Meeting adjourned . 

Next meeting on February 23, 2016 at noon. 

Submitted by Tawny Cramer 
        Signed: _______________________________ 
         Brian Ahier Secretary/Treasurer 

 



  

Financial Reports 
 

• Financial Narrative 

 

 





































  

Resolution No. 17-001 
 

• Resolution No. 17-001 

 

 















  

Financial Priorities 
 

• Financial Priorities 2016-17 

 

 







  

Appoint a Budget Officer 
 

• No materials submitted – return to agenda 

 



  

Reports 
 

• Technical Management Report – John Amery 

 



Aristo Networks LLC
Technical Management Report

By
John Amery
2/17/2017

 Items of Discussion:

◦ 10th Street fiber replacement project.

▪ Qlife has scheduled maintenance and is moving forward with replacement of the 

failing fiber section.

▪ Engineering is working with the manufacturer to see if they can provide Qlife 

additional input.

▪ A request for potential relief has been made for FEMA funds due to the fiber 

failure's linkage to the extreme cold temperatures of the storm.

▪ A determination is still required whether the entire zone requires replacement.

◦ BPA fiber re-route project 

▪ Qlife is waiting for feedback from one of our customers regarding which path they 

would like Qlife to utilize for connections into their hut.

◦ . Qlife electronics monitoring

▪ Additional efforts are still required to fine tune our electronics monitoring.



  

Consultant Interviews 
 

• Wrap-up Document 

 



 

Consultant Proposals 
 
 

• Adam Haas 
• Nancy Jesuale & Sue Diciple 
• Joseph Franell 
• Joanne Hovis 

 
 



  

Adam Haas – Converge Communications 
Proposal 

 
 



Strategic Plan Proposal
for

Q-Life
Presented to the Q-Life Board of Directors

JANUARY 26, 2017

Presented by Adam Haas and Marsha Spellman



Converge Credentials & Background
Portland based consulting company established in 1994

Incorporated in 2007 and certified Woman Owned WBE/ESB

Marsha SpellmanMarsha SpellmanMarsha SpellmanMarsha Spellman, MA, JD, President/Principal
� Regulatory

� Strategic Planning/Needs Assessments

� Grant Writing

� Legislative Chair of the Oregon Telecommunications Association

� Serves on the OUSF Advisory Board of the Oregon PUC 

� Telecom Specialist with the Oregon Cable TV Association

� Assistant Director, NW, Cathey Hutton and Associates (CHR Solution)



Converge Credentials & Background
Adam HaasAdam HaasAdam HaasAdam Haas, CEO/Principal

� Needs Assessments/Business Assessments/Project Management

� EVP, GM for Rogers Cable TV in Portland

� Managing Director of Jones Cable in England

� Managed two telecommunications consulting practices in Oregon before Converge

� Background is both hands-on and strategic

� Serves on the Oregon State Interoperable Executive Council



Relevant Projects
Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs:   

Needs Assessment and Strategic Plans

Warm Springs Telecom:   
Conceived, created, & launched Tribal telephone company

Grand Ronde Tribes:
Needs assessment and strategic plan for tribal telecom network

Grand Ronde Tribes: 
Created telecom business Plan

Okanogan PUD:   
Assessment of existing wholesale fiber optic and wireless operation

City of Astoria:   

Wireless project with Verizon and City Public Safety

Port of Morrow:

Broadband deployment strategies 







Project Understanding: Tough Questions to be 
Answered

�Is the original mission of robust middle-mile fiber and economic development still 
relevant?

�How has the market changed since 2003 and what are the implications to Q-Life?

�How can or should Q-Life strive to change to meet the new environment?

�Should Q-Life be doing more Fiber to the Home projects; what is the potential of 
that business?

�How should Q-Life be structured to meet existing and future challenges, or has Q-
Life been so successful in fulfilling its mission that an exit strategy is the best 
approach?

�What would it look like to take Q-Life to the next level?



Project Approach (4 months to completion)

1. Kick off meeting…..Adjust approach based on client input

2. Review historical information provided by Q-Life

3. Interview/survey existing anchor customers

4. Interview community leaders and elected officials

5. Contact other telecommunications service providers

6. Assess interest level of residential customers for Fiber to the Home services

7. Define competitive forces at play in the marketplace

8. Analyze the current Q-Life pricing structure as compared to the marketplace and 
recommend changes

9. Analyze current regulatory issues and potential impact on Q-Life (Lifeline, ETC/CLEC, State 
Funding)

10. Present initial findings and conclusions to the Board for input

11. Finalize report



Marketplace Analysis
In order to best determine the future of Q-Life, Converge will determine what 
presently exists in the telecom marketplace and what the community is presently 
lacking.   

Can Q-Life fill a specific need that is not being met?

Can Q-Life offer a product or products that will extend the network that presently 
exists at a cost that makes sense?

What is the cost of filling those needs?



Project Deliverables
Project Report to include:

• Market analysis using the SWOT format (Strengths, Weaknesses Opportunities & 
threats) to include new business opportunities

• Pricing recommendations

• Summary of stakeholder input

• Recommendations on potential paths for Q-Life to follow and relative merits of 
each.

PowerPoint presentation to the Board



Why Converge Communications?
�Deep understanding of telecommunications issues in rural Oregon

�Proven track record in similar projects

�Practical, hands-on experience with demonstrated success

�Business oriented with many years of P&L experience

�Our local knowledge and rural expertise will enable us to hit the road running!

�Will take fresh approach without pre-conceived conclusions

�Pre-disposition to economic development through competitive broadband

�Strong regulatory expertise, both Federal FCC and State PUC



Project Pricing
Total Project Cost: $27,264Total Project Cost: $27,264Total Project Cost: $27,264Total Project Cost: $27,264

Hourly Rates
Principal:  $150

Research Analysist: $60

Total Project Hours 208

Expenses $924

Optional Items:
Detailed Business/Financial ModelDetailed Business/Financial ModelDetailed Business/Financial ModelDetailed Business/Financial Model

Detailed Technical EvaluationDetailed Technical EvaluationDetailed Technical EvaluationDetailed Technical Evaluation

Electronic Consumer SurveyElectronic Consumer SurveyElectronic Consumer SurveyElectronic Consumer Survey



Thank you!
For more information, please contact:

Adam Haas

503-997-5584

adamhaas@convergecomm.com



  

Nancy Jesuale and Sue Diciple  
 

 



PRESENTATION TO THE  

Q-LIFE  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

NetCity Inc. 
Sue Diciple Group 



Overview 
 Original Q-Life vision, mission and purpose for middle-mile 

infrastructure has largely been met. 

 Q-Life is seeking analysis  and recommendations  for options 
going forward which could include continuing the current line 
of business, new opportunities, or sale . 

 Reconsideration of Q-Life’s vision, mission and purpose will 
provide necessary context for selecting among options. 

 A detailed plan for rolling out the option selected will guide 
and drive implementation. 



• 14 years as president of NetCity, a strategic consultancy  planning 
and building municipal fiber, public safety and transit 
communications wireless networks 

• Experienced broadband strategic planner and lead consultant to the 
Oregon Broadband Commission’s statewide strategic planning 
process (Portland, Wasco County, Sherwood, Independence, Warm 
Springs, etc.) 

• Visionary and leader of Portland’s flagship IRNE fiber network 

• Director of Oregon Ed-NET 

• 30 years as a municipal executive and director of telecommunications 
(Los Angeles, State of Oregon and Portland) 

Nancy Jesuale 
NetCity Inc. 



• 30 years experience in design & facilitation of collaborative decision-
making frameworks 

• Facilitator & drafter of over 100 strategic plans for utilities, 
manufacturers, government agencies, broadband providers 

• Experienced with telecommunications planning including broadband, 
retail service, emergency communications systems  strategic plans, and 
network planning 

• 20 years service in cable and telecommunications policy  representing 
the City of Portland on the Mt Hood Cable Regulatory Commission 

 

 

Sue Diciple 
Sue Diciple Group 
 



• Re-examination of the mission and strategic plan of 
Q-Life going forward, and its role in economic 
development through infrastructure ownership 

• Parameters & criteria for selecting among 
options 

• Q-Life structure 

• Potential business models & scenarios within 
parameters 

 

Phase One: Worksession  
Range of Desirable & Feasible Outcomes 
 



• Collaborative investigation of opportunities, 
potential partnerships (public/private) with 
Commstructure, Aristo, LSN and others as 
relevant 

• Scope, then conduct or administrate required 
market research 

• Apply analysis to potential opportunities and 
models 

Phase Two: Research 
Market, Cost & Feasibility Analysis 
 



• Provide recommendations 

• Facilitate evaluation by Q-Life 

• Clarify/adopt policy  

• Select among  business models within 
parameters & criteria 

 
 

Phase Three: Worksession  
Consider & Select Among Alternatives 
 



• Clearly define strategy 
• Timeframe 
• Critical Path 
• Roles & Responsibilities 

 

Phase Four: Worksession 
Consider & Adopt a Roll-Out Strategy & Plan 



Estimated Project Hours/Cost 

FIRM / CONSULTANT HOURS TOTAL 

NetCity Inc. / Nancy Jesuale 108 $21,600 

Sue Diciple Group / Sue Diciple 72 12,600 

PROJECT TOTALS: 180 $34,200 
 

* Direct expenses will be billed at cost  



THANK YOU – QUESTIONS? 



  

Joseph Franell – Eastern Oregon Telecom 
 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Strategic Consulting Proposal 

 

January 23, 2017 

 

 

Prepared for:   

The Board of Directors 

QLife Network 
511 Washington St. Suite 101, The Dalles, OR  97058   

541-506-2550 

 

 

Prepared by:    

Joseph Franell 
General Manager and CEO 

Eastern Oregon Telecom 
PO Box 848, Hermiston, OR  97838 

541-289-7010 

jfranell@eotnet.com 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jfranell@eotnet.com


2 | P a g e  
 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal to assist the QLife Board of Directors in 

assessing the future of the organization and defining options for a strategic direction.  

Per the scope of work provided, this proposal will begin with a market analysis to include 

opportunities and the competitive landscape.   

The final product will include a financial analysis, a proposed roadmap for the future, a 

risk/benefit analysis, options for technology deployment to meet the needs of the area (fiber-to-

the home, fixed wireless, hybrid-fiber coaxial, and combinations if appropriate.   

Since QLife went through a broadband strategic planning process in 2012/2013, it seems prudent 

to survey board members and interested parties (as recommended by the board) to determine 

if the results of the strategic planning process are still valid and applicable.   

The assessment is specifically performed by: 

1. Meeting with the QLife Administrator to ensure a good understanding of the basics 

of your business, strategy, goals, and financials (pricing and P&L). 

2. Performing an analysis of available Internet services (including pricing if available) 

and current service providers in the area.   

3. Surveying QLife board members and other designated parties to determine the 

following: 

a. Are the results of the 2012/2013 Broadband Strategic Planning process still 

valid? 

b. Are there any additional or different goals that respondents envision for 

the area? 

4. Assessing areas of need and opportunity within the service area and providing options 

for meeting those needs/leveraging the opportunities. 

5. Presenting initial findings to the QLife Board of Directors in the form of a decision briefing 

and facilitating a decision on the future of QLife. 

6. Develop and subsequently present the requested roadmap on how “to reach the next 

level and what that next level looks like”. 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

Joseph Franell 

Currently, Joe is the Chief Executive Officer of Eastern Oregon Telecom (EOT), a rural 

competitive telephone company and Internet service provider serving residents and businesses 

in the Hermiston/Pendleton area of Northeastern Oregon.  Technologies deployed include 

Active E (Fiber to the Business), GPON (Fiber to the Home), Fixed Wireless, Hybrid Fiber/Coax 

(DOCSIS 3.0), DSL, TDM Voice and VOIP.  EOT is currently providing residential and/or 

commercial Gigabit services in four of the communities in its service area.  This is significant 

because it is being done profitably and without any government subsidies or support in a 

competitive environment that is defined as rural, rural remote, and frontier. 

Currently and since 2010, Joe has also been the chairman of the Oregon Broadband Advisory 

Council (OBAC).  He was originally appointed by the Governor in 2009 and has been 

reappointed twice.  The OBAC is responsible for advising the legislature and Governor’s office 

on broadband adoption and utilization in Oregon for economic development, e-government, 

tele-health and tele-medicine, energy, education, public safety, and on tribal lands.   

Prior to coming to work at EOT, Joe was the Director of Information Technology for the city of 

Ashland, Oregon, where he was responsible for the Ashland Fiber Network, a municipally-

owned and operated broadband telecommunications company.  He restructured the Ashland 

Fiber Network within the first six months of employment resulting in the enterprise being 

profitable and operationally cash flow positive for the first time since its inception.  

Additionally, he formed an IT Steering Committee of senior users from each department and 

drafted the City’s first Technology Plan.  During his tenure, and in large part due to his 

leadership, Ashland was selected as one of the Intelligent Communities Forum Smart 21 

Communities for 2007 and 2008, because of its innovative and visionary use of broadband 

technologies. 

Before moving to the Pacific Northwest, Joe was the Senior Manager of Operations for Knology, 

Inc. in Florida, a triple play (Cable TV, Phone, and Internet) telecommunications provider.  In 

that role, he was selected to be the project manager for the acquisition of a new property five 

times as large as Knology’s then largest division.  He also launched a Scientific Atlanta digital 

overlay video system (one of the first in the country) and a facilities based telephone company 

(one of only two started in the US in 2004).  Additionally, his operations expertise resulted in 

the reduction of total operational expenditures by more than 6%. Helped drive EBITDA growth 

of over five million dollars and customer growth of more than 30% annually over three years. 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

Boards, Councils, and Committees: 

Oregon Broadband Advisory Council:  2009 – present.  Chairman, 2010 – present. 

Eastern Oregon Workforce Board: 2016 – present.  Member (representing Umatilla County) 

Huawei U.S. Tier 3 CEO Advisory Board:  2013 - 2014 

Hermiston Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors -  Past Chairman, Current Ex Officio Member and 

Senior Advisor 

West Umatilla County Economic Development Group - Organizer/Facilitator. 

Blue Mountain Community College, Computer Science Advisory Board. 

Oregon Connections Telecommunications Conference - Master of Ceremonies. 

 

Presentations and Panels: 

7/21/16 – NTCA Webcast:  Land of Opportunity: Strategies for Bridging the Rural America Broadband 

Gap Presentation and Q&A. 

11/16/15 – Quartz Conference on Connecting the Next Billion People:  Featured guest at Executive 

Roundtable Breakfast discussion, NY, NY. 

9/10/15 – CTIA:  Hybrid Approach to Broadband Delivery in Rural Markets Presentation and Panel, Las 

Vegas, NV. 

6/20/15 – NTCA NW/SW Regional Conference: Hybrid Approach to Broadband Delivery in Rural Markets 

Presentation and Panel, Portland, OR 

4/27/15 – NTCA Marketing Conference: Gigabit Marketing Presentation and Panel, Austin, TX. 

11/3/14 – National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners Annual Meeting: Municipal 

Broadband Panel, San Francisco, CA. 

 

Publications: 

“Connecting rural broadband by utilizing hybrid approach.”  July, 2016,  

http://www.telecomlead.com/broadband/connecting-rural-broadband-utilizing-hybrid-approach-70209 

 “Is the Internet Living Up to Its Potential?”  June 30, 2016, 

http://www.telcotransformation.com/author.asp?section_id=399&doc_id=724430 

“Why should you care about cyber security?”  May 6, 2016,  

http://www.eastoregonian.com/eo/business/20160506/franell-why-should-you-care-about-cyber-

security 

“A New Role for the Service Provider.”  January 11, 2016,  

http://www.telcotransformation.com/author.asp?section_id=399&doc_id=720319 

 

http://www.telecomlead.com/broadband/connecting-rural-broadband-utilizing-hybrid-approach-70209
http://www.telcotransformation.com/author.asp?section_id=399&doc_id=724430
http://www.eastoregonian.com/eo/business/20160506/franell-why-should-you-care-about-cyber-security
http://www.eastoregonian.com/eo/business/20160506/franell-why-should-you-care-about-cyber-security
http://www.telcotransformation.com/author.asp?section_id=399&doc_id=720319


5 | P a g e  
 

On the air: 

“Evolution of a Service Provider.”  May 19, 2016,  

http://www.telcotransformation.com/radio.asp?doc_id=723232 

“The State of Broadband in the State of Oregon.”  October 22, 2015,  

https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.blogtalkradio.com/gigabitnation/2015/10/22/the-state-

broadband-in-the-state-of-

oregon&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjEutyBkYrNAhVK5IMKHTl5C4UQFggFMAA&client=internal-uds-

cse&usg=AFQjCNEt8R_1owwAFo_-36gU2ktmUVDtJA 

 

 

 

http://www.telcotransformation.com/radio.asp?doc_id=723232
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.blogtalkradio.com/gigabitnation/2015/10/22/the-state-broadband-in-the-state-of-oregon&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjEutyBkYrNAhVK5IMKHTl5C4UQFggFMAA&client=internal-uds-cse&usg=AFQjCNEt8R_1owwAFo_-36gU2ktmUVDtJA
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.blogtalkradio.com/gigabitnation/2015/10/22/the-state-broadband-in-the-state-of-oregon&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjEutyBkYrNAhVK5IMKHTl5C4UQFggFMAA&client=internal-uds-cse&usg=AFQjCNEt8R_1owwAFo_-36gU2ktmUVDtJA
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.blogtalkradio.com/gigabitnation/2015/10/22/the-state-broadband-in-the-state-of-oregon&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjEutyBkYrNAhVK5IMKHTl5C4UQFggFMAA&client=internal-uds-cse&usg=AFQjCNEt8R_1owwAFo_-36gU2ktmUVDtJA
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.blogtalkradio.com/gigabitnation/2015/10/22/the-state-broadband-in-the-state-of-oregon&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjEutyBkYrNAhVK5IMKHTl5C4UQFggFMAA&client=internal-uds-cse&usg=AFQjCNEt8R_1owwAFo_-36gU2ktmUVDtJA


6 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

NOTE:  The above timeline is preliminary and makes the following assumptions: 

1. Contract awarded and project begun NLT February 1, 2017. 

2. QLife Board Meetings are monthly on the fourth Thursday of the month.  If not, timeline will be 

adjusted. 

3. The QLife Administrator will be available for a kick-off interview. 

4. QLife will provide names, email addresses, and phone numbers for Board Members and 

designated interested parties for use in distributing and following up on the online survey. 

5. The on-line survey will be completed by designated participants by the date specified. 

6. QLife will provide serviceable address in all communities of interest for use in determining 

service availability and pricing by other providers. 

 

PROJECT DETAILS

DATE MILESTONE

2/1/2017 Project Start

2/6/2017 Interview of Administrator Complete

2/13/2017 Competitive Market Analysis Complete

2/20/2017 Online Survey Built and Distributed

3/6/2017 Online Survey Due from Participants

3/6/2017 Area Needs Assessment Completed

3/23/2017 Present Initial Findings to Q-Life Board

4/27/2017 Present Roadmap to the Q-Life Board

4/26/2017 April 23, 2017  Project End



7 | P a g e  
 

 

Per the requirements of the RFP, deliverables from this project include: 

1.  An analysis of available Internet services (including pricing if available) and current service 

providers in the area.   

 

2. Surveying QLife board members and other designated parties to determine the following: 

a. Are the results of the 2012/2013 Broadband Strategic Planning process still valid? 

b. Are there any additional or different goals that respondents envision for the area? 

 

3. An analysis of if it is prudent to continue in this line of business or to sell the entity. 

 

4. A roadmap for how to reach the next level and what that next level looks like based on QLife’s 

financial position and ability to operate in this market going forward.  The analysis will include 

the following: 

a. An analysis of potential new business opportunities in a rural setting where building 

fiber is not necessarily cost effective.  

b. The feasibility of moving into becoming a fiber to the home provider in our service area. 

 

5. An analysis of, and recommendations for change to QLife’s pricing structure as compared to the 

marketplace. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

 

A cost estimate is provided below.  Hourly rate is $150/hour (discounted for this project from 

$250/hour).  Travel time is billed at 50% of hourly rate plus the 2017 IRS mileage reimbursement rate of 

$0.535/mile.  Each item listed below will be billed at actual hours worked, not to exceed the listed 

amount. 

 

Timeline may be adjusted based on Board availability. 

Scope of work may be expanded if necessary at the same hourly rates if mutually agreed upon.   I will 

invoice the client Net 15 for the billable hours at the end of every month of the engagement. 

Again, I appreciate the opportunity to respond to your request for proposal and look forward to working 

with QLife.   

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION HOURS COST

1
An analysis of available Internet services (including 

pricing if available) and current service providers in 

the area.  6 900.00$          

2

Surveying QLife board members and other 

designated parties.  Includes development and 

distribution of the survey and compiling the 

results. 6 900.00$          

3
An analysis of if it is prudent to continue in this 

line of business or to sell the entity. 2 300.00$          

4

A roadmap for how to reach the next level and 

what that next level looks like based on QLife’s 

financial position and ability to operate in this 

market going forward. 8 1,200.00$      

5
An analysis of, and recommendations for change to 

Qlife's pricing structure as compared to the 

marketplace. 2 300.00$          

6
Travel - Two trips to The Dalles for Board Meetings.  

Travel time billed at 50% of hourly rate plus 

mileage (2017 IRS rate of $0.535/mile). 6 668.28$          

7 Board Meeting #1 1 150.00$          

8 Board Meeting #2 3 450.00$          

TOTALS 34 4,868.28$      



  

Joanne Hovis – CTC Technology and Energy 
 

 



Proposal to QLife 

Joanne Hovis, president 
CTC Technology & Energy 

 



CTC has singular capabilities in public broadband 
efforts 
• Team of 40 broadband engineers, market and business 

analysts, and financial planners 
• Carry all necessary E&O insurance, with no claim in our 

entire 35 years 

• International and national footprint, with extensive rural 
experience 

• Recent work on west coast: Portland, Seattle, San 
Francisco, Santa Cruz, Vallejo, Hayward 

• We are entirely independent of the industry and 
represent your interests only 

 



Our staffing commitment is to meet your needs 

• We commit to availability, including: 
• All necessary presence in Oregon 
• Accessibility during Pacific time business hours 

• Firm principals and senior staff will lead the work 
• Joanne Hovis: Strategy 
• Tom Asp: POC, financial modeling, and business analysis 
• Andrew Afflerbach, Ph.D., P.E. : engineering, technology, and 

rights-of-way 



We hold a conservative consulting philosophy  

• Our approach is to evaluate feasibility and build strategy 
based on your stated goals 

• We will help you understand your options, including potential  
risk and challenge 

• We are not the right consulting firm for a client seeking a 
particular outcome 
 

 



Our experience covers the full range of public broadband 
needs  

• Three decades of experience planning & 
designing public sector fiber networks 
• City, regional, public safety/homeland security, K-12, 

libraries, traffic management, smart cities, higher ed, 
social service organizations 

• Economic development target areas 
• Ubiquitous Fiber-to-the-Premises 

• Our engineers hold an average of 15 years experience 
• Design, cost estimation, RFPs, construction oversight, testing 

of hundreds of projects 



Funding, regulatory, and legal analysis 

• 10 years of success in grant writing and management 
• Deep understanding of policy and political environments 

 
• We are not qualified to offer you legal advice 

 
 



Effective communications in public 
settings 
• We have an educational mission 

– Teach countless seminars and webinars per year 
across a range of topics 

• We are experienced and adept at 
presentations and interaction with 
– Elected officials 
– Stakeholders 
– The public 



Proposed Tasks 

1. Market and competition assessment (demand 
and supply) 

2. System level design for FTTP and cost estimate 
3. Financial model for FTTP 
4. Valuation of existing network and enterprise 

from standpoint of sale or continue to operate 
5. Recommendations 



Task 1: Market & competition assessment 
 

• Goal is to understand what is happening in your 
communities 

• Supply analysis—we assess existing competition 
and build matrix of services and costs 

• Demand analysis—we talk with potential 
customers to get a sense of whether gaps exist in 
the market that your FTTP expansion could fill 
– Optional: written survey and statistical analysis of 

residential market at additional cost 



Task 2: FTTP high-level design & cost est. 
 

• Our engineering team will develop a system-
level design for expansion to FTTP and an 
associated cost estimate 

• On-site fieldwork to understand specific 
factors re pole availability and make-ready 
costs, topology, etc. 

• Detailed model with narrative discussion and 
full explanation of methodology 



Task 3: Financial model for FTTP 
• Our financial team will develop a 

comprehensive financial model for FTTP and 
pro forma with all relevant financial 
statements 

• We will test multiple scenarios and 
sensitivities to help you fully understand risk 

• We will provide you the model, along with 
detailed narrative discussion and description 



Task 4: Valuation 

• Understanding that one of area of 
investigation is potential sale, we will develop 
a valuation of the existing network 
– Based on current financial statements 



Task 5: Report and recommendations 

• Our final deliverable will be a comprehensive 
report with all prior work included and all 
analysis fully integrated 

• The report will lay out the options and 
scenarios considered, and compare risk and 
opportunity 



Proposed Fees 

• Approximately 520 hours at an average billing 
rate of $170  
– inclusive of travel for four individual trips to OR 

• $80,000 budget 
– Plus additional $20,000 for written 

surveys/market research of residential market if 
you choose to add that task 

• Six-month timeline 
 

 



  

Maupin Project Update 
 

• No materials submitted – return to agenda 

 



  

Executive Session 
 

 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	January 26th, 2017 Minutes

	Financial Reports
	Financial Narrative

	Resolution No. 17-001
	Resolution No. 17-001

	Financial Priorities
	2016-17 Financial Priorities

	Appoint a Budget Officer
	Reports
	Technical Management Report

	Consultant Interviews
	Final Proposal Wrap-up.pdf
	Index
	Adam Haas Proposal
	Nancy Jesuale & Sue Diciple Proposal
	ADP8835.tmp
	Presentation To the �Q-life �Board of Directors 
	Overview
	Nancy Jesuale�NetCity Inc.
	Sue Diciple�Sue Diciple Group�
	Phase One: Worksession  Range of Desirable & Feasible Outcomes 
	Phase Two: Research�Market, Cost & Feasibility Analysis�
	Phase Three: Worksession �Consider & Select Among Alternatives�
	Phase Four: Worksession�Consider & Adopt a Roll-Out Strategy & Plan
	Estimated Project Hours/Cost
	Thank you – Questions?


	Joseph Franell Proposal
	Joanne Hovis Proposal
	ADPEB64.tmp
	Proposal to QLife
	CTC has singular capabilities in public broadband efforts
	Our staffing commitment is to meet your needs
	We hold a conservative consulting philosophy 
	Our experience covers the full range of public broadband needs 
	Funding, regulatory, and legal analysis
	Effective communications in public settings
	Proposed Tasks
	Task 1: Market & competition assessment�
	Task 2: FTTP high-level design & cost est.�
	Task 3: Financial model for FTTP
	Task 4: Valuation
	Task 5: Report and recommendations
	Proposed Fees



	Maupin Project Update
	Executive Session



